
 

                         

 

 

 

 

                             

 

 

 

TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH 

 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD  

MEETING 

 

TUESDAY, JULY 16, 2024 

 

AGENDA PACKET 

 

1



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
AGENDA JULY 16, 2024 

 
MEETING AGENDA – Pages 3-4     
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
A. May 7, 2024 minutes – Pages 5-8    
 

NEW BUSINESS 
A. Site plan approval for 506 Third Ave – new home – Pages 9-62 
B. Discussion on accessory structure requirements – Page 63 
C. Discussion on code revisions to 9A Landscaping and Trees – Pages 64-76 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
A. Ordinance 2024-01 Sheds – Pages 77-82 
 

2



 

 

Town of Melbourne Beach 
 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

AGENDA 
 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING 

Tuesday, July 16, 2024 @ 6:30 pm 

COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 
 

 

Board Members:             Alternate Board Members     Staff Members: 

Chairman David Campbell            Alternate Todd Albert             Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro  

Vice-Chairman Kurt Belsten            Alternate Jason Judge      Town Clerk Amber Brown 

Member April Evans           Building Official Robert Bitgood 

Member Dan Harper 

Member Gabor Kishegyi 

 

 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES, THE TOWN HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT: In order to appeal any 

decision made at this meeting, you will need a verbatim transcript of the proceedings. It will be your responsibility to ensure such 

a record is made. Such person must provide a method for recording the proceedings verbatim as the Town does not do so. 

In accordance with the Americans with Disability Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons needing special 

accommodations for this meeting shall, at least 5 days prior to the meeting, contact the Office of the Town Clerk at (321) 724-

5860 or Florida Relay System at 711. 

 

 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Roll Call 
 

3. Approval of Minutes 

A. May 7, 2024 minutes 
 

4. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Site plan approval for 506 Third Ave – new home 

B. Discussion on accessory structure requirements  

C. Discussion on code revisions to 9A Landscaping and Trees  
 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Ordinance 2024-01 Sheds  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE 

BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

APPENDIX “A” OF THE TOWN CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF MELBOURNE BEACH, THE LAND 

DEVELOPMENT CODE; AMENDING SECTION 7A-57 

3



 

 

RELATING TO UTILITY SHEDS AND SETBACK 

REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 

PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR 

SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 
 

6. OLD BUSINESS 
 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Please limit comments to items that are not on the agenda 
 

8. REPORTS: TOWN MANAGER AND TOWN ATTORNEY 
 

9. ITEMS TO BE ADDED TO THE AGENDA FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

4



1 

 

Town of Melbourne Beach 
 

MINUTES 
 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING 

TUESDAY, MAY 7, 2024 @ 6:30 PM 

COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 

 

 

 

 

 
Board Members:                    Alternate Board Members      Staff Members: 

Chairman David Campbell                 Alternate Todd Albert          Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro  

Vice-Chairman Kurt Belsten        Alternate Jason Judge   Town Clerk Amber Brown 

Member April Evans        Building Official Robert Bitgood 

Member Dan Harper 

Member Gabor Kishegyi 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES, THE TOWN HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT: In order to appeal any 

decision made at this meeting, you will need a verbatim transcript of the proceedings. It will be your responsibility to ensure 

such a record is made. Such person must provide a method for recording the proceedings verbatim as the Town does not do 

so. 

In accordance with the Americans with Disability Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons needing special 

accommodations for this meeting shall, at least 5 days prior to the meeting, contact the Office of the Town Clerk at (321) 724-

5860 or Florida Relay System at 711. 

 

 

 

 
 

5



2 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

Chairman David Campbell called the meeting to order at 6:40 p.m. 

 

2. ROLL CALL 

 

Town Clerk Amber Brown conducted the roll call 

 

Present:       Staff Present:     

Chairman David Campbell   Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro  

Vice-Chairman Kurt Belsten   Building Official Robert Bitgood  

Member April Evans    Town Clerk Amber Brown    

Alternate Todd Albert 

Absent: 

Member Dan Harper 

Member Gabor Kishegyi 

Alternate Jason Judge 

 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

A. April 2, 2024 minutes 

 

Member April Evans made a motion to approve; Vice Chairman Kurt Belsten seconded; Motion 

carried 4-0. 

 

4. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Discussion on changes to 7A-50 Off-Street Parking 

 

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro spoke about there being limited parking in the 

business district and the Town cannot add more. She spoke about the changes 

include: minimum required parking spaces per business being five with up to two 

spaces for golf carts, add bike racks, reduce the minimum dimension for parking 

spaces from 10 feet to 9.5 feet, golf cart parking spaces shall be 6 feet by 11 feet. 

Residential units would be: 1 bedroom unit requires 1 space, 2 bedroom units requires 

1.5 spaces, and 3 bedroom units requires 2 space. 

 

Chairman David Campbell spoke about not severing the parking requirements because 

a restaurant needs more parking than a drug store, there are a lot of big vehicles 

around here now so the size should not be reduced, and he is opposed to making any 

changes to the residential areas. He thinks that parking requirements should be tied to 

the square footage and the usage.  

 

Member April Evans spoke about years ago the parking requirements and restrictions 

were driven by the fire marshal. Is that not the case anymore? She spoke about 

6



3 

 

agreeing with what Chairman David Campbell said. She spoke about not making 

blanket changes that impact the entire Town to accommodate one or two properties. 

Instead, have those properties go to the Board of Adjustments. 

 

Building Official Robert Bitgood and Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro spoke about 

that not being the case anymore.  

 

 Tim Reed – 302 Fourth 

 

Tim Reed spoke about not understanding what is driving the need to change it. 

 

Building Official Robert Bitgood spoke about part of what is driving this is how much 

parking food establishments are required to have.  

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro spoke about there being several people interested 

in the old green building, but not after hearing the parking requirements. 

 

Member April Evans made a motion to not address any changes in parking at this point; Vice 

Chairman Kurt Belsten seconded; Motion carried 3-1 with Alternate Todd Albert dissenting. 

 

Todd Albert spoke about voting against it because it is worth seeing if there is a 

different way to look at it. 

 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Ordinance 2024-02 Repealing Ordinance 2023-02 Second Kitchens 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, REPEALING ORDINANCE 2023-

02 IN ITS ENTIRETY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Member April Evans spoke about wanting to keep the definition of kitchen. 

 

Chairman David Campbell spoke about this ordinance says it is repealing the ordinance 

in its entirety, so it should be left as it is. 

 

Member April Evans spoke about adding the definition in the future. 

 

Chairman David Campbell agreed. 

 

Member April Evans made a motion to approve; Alternate Todd Albert seconded; Motion carried 

4-0.  

 

6. OLD BUSINESS 

 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

7



4 

 

8. REPORTS: TOWN MANAGER AND TOWN ATTORNEY 

 

Building Official Robert Bitgood spoke about the Town Commission approved the Planning 

and Zoning Board looking into accessory structures. 

 

Member April Evans spoke about having a maximum percentage of the primary structure, 

but also an overall maximum square footage as well.  

 

9. ITEMS TO BE ADDED TO THE AGENDA FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 

 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Alternate Todd Albert motioned to adjourn; Member April Evans seconded; Motion carried 4-0. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:06 p.m. 

 

 

 

        ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________    ______________________________ 

David Campbell, Chairman     Amber Brown, Town Clerk  

 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



Planning and Zoning Meeting 

Section: New Business     

Meeting Date: July 16, 2024  

From: Planning and Zoning Board    

RE: Accessory Structure Requirements    

 

Background Information: 

Discussion on accessory structure requirements. 

 

 

63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



Planning and Zoning Board Meeting  

Section:   Public Hearings  

Meeting Date:  July 16, 2024 

From:   Ryan Knight Town Attorney 

Re:   Ordinance 2024-01 Sheds  

Background Information: 
 
During the June 19, 2024 Regular Town Commission Meeting the Town Commission approved Ordinance 
2024-01 sheds – first reading. 
 
A new Utility Shed Ordinance was presented to Planning and Zoning on February 6, 2024, at which time, 
P&Z made changes to the language provided by the Building Official 
 
The new Utility Shed Ordinance was presented to the Town Commission on February 21, 2024, along 
with, the recommendations from Planning and Zoning.  The Town Commission voted to approve the 
language as presented below 
 
  160 square feet 
  11.6 feet total above grade inclusive of the base.   
  Substantially screened by a vegetative barrier or fence. 
  Utility Sheds behind the front building line. 
  Roofline must be 5 feet off the property line, 
  There shall be not be any water hooked up to the utility shed. 
 
The Utility Shed Ordinance came back to Planning and Zoning on March 5, 2024, with the 
recommendations from the Town Commission.  The Planning and Zoning Board amended their language 
to reflect the following changes: 
 
  140 square feet 
  Utility sheds behind the rear of the front building line and behind the building  
  Line of the side of any structure abutting any street with a 2-foot setback.  
 
The new Utility Shed Ordinance was presented to the Town Commission on March 20, 2024, along with, 
the recommendations from Planning and Zoning Board.  The Town Commission voted to table the item 
and requested the Building Official and Planning and Zoning Board provide options and visual diagrams. 
 
During the April 17, 2024, Regular Town Commission Meeting the Town Commission requested an 
Ordinance be prepared based on the Planning and Zoning recommendations with a few modifications. 
 
During the May 15, 2024 Regular Town Commission Meeting Ordinance 2024-01 Sheds was presented 
for the first reading. The Town Commission did not have a quorum to vote on this agenda item. 
 
Recommendation:  
 
Consider approving Ordinance 2024-01. 
 
Attachments:  Ordinance 2024-01 
 
 

77



ORDINANCE NO. 2024-___ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE 

BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

APPENDIX “A” OF THE TOWN CODE OF ORDINANCES 

OF MELBOURNE BEACH, THE LAND DEVELOPMENT 

CODE; AMENDING SECTION 7A-57 RELATING TO 

UTILITY SHEDS AND SETBACK REQUIREMENTS; 

PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR 

CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR SERVERABILITY; 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Melbourne Beach desires to amend the Land Development Code 

of the Town of Melbourne Beach regarding accessory structures and, specifically, utility sheds; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town Commission, after duly noticed public hearings, has determined 

that the amendments to Section 7A-57 of the Land Development Code proposed in this Ordinance 

will provide for the improved regulation of utility sheds in the Town of Melbourne Beach; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town Commission, after duly noticed public hearings, has determined 

that the amendments to Section 7A-57 of the Land Development Code proposed in this Ordinance 

are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, are in the best interest of its citizens, and promote the 

general health, safety, and welfare of the residents of the Town of Melbourne Beach; and 

 

 WHEREAS, on June ___, 2024, the Planning and Zoning Board/Local Planning Agency 

(collectively the “LPA”) at a duly noticed public hearing, reviewed and considered the proposed 

amendments to Section 7A-57 of the Land Development Code and took public comment regarding 

the same; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the LPA has determined that the proposed amendments to Section 7A-57 of 

the Land Development Code are consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive Plan and are in the 

best interest of the Town of Melbourne Beach and recommended that the Town Commission 

approve of the same. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, 

FLORIDA: 

 

NOTE:  Underlined words constitute additions to the Town of Melbourne Beach 

Code of Ordinances, strikethrough constitutes deletions from the original Code of Ordinances, and 

asterisks (***) indicate an omission from the existing text which is intended to remain unchanged. 

 

 Section 1. The findings set forth in the recitals above are adopted and fully incorporated 

herein as legislative findings of the Town Commission pertaining to this Ordinance. 

 

78



 Section 2. Section 7A-57 of Appendix “A,” of the Town Code of the Town of Melbourne 

Beach, Florida, Land Development Code, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

§ 7A-57. Accessory Structures. 

 

(a) (1)  No accessory structure shall be erected in any front yard. Unless specifically defined in this 

chapter, no accessory structure shall be erected in any side yard. Except as otherwise provided 

by this chapter, no accessory structure shall exceed the height of the main structure. Unless 

specifically allowed in this chapter, no accessory structure other than a utility shed shall be 

constructed within 15 feet of any lot line. 

 

      (2)  Accessory structures may be constructed simultaneously with, or following the 

construction of the main building and shall not be used until after the principal structure has been 

fully erected. Erection of tents as accessory structures is prohibited. No home occupation or 

business may be conducted in any accessory structure. No accessory structure which contains 

living quarters shall be constructed on any lot. 

 

(b) Accessory buildings erected on lots fronting on two streets shall conform to main structure 

setbacks for the rear yard. 

 

(c) Trailers may be used for the storage of equipment during construction provided such 

trailers are used only during the construction period. A temporary trailer permit shall be required 

for all structures, and shall be renewable every six months. 

 

(d) All utility sheds require a building permit. Utility sheds may not be larger than 120 160 

square feet in floor area and 10 ½ 11.6 feet in height. Utility shed foundations should be no higher 

than 8 inches above ground level. Utility sheds shall be substantially screened by a vegetative 

barrier or fence from the front and side streets. Screening shall be accomplished through 

landscaping, fencing or a combination of the two. Utility sheds must be behind the rear of the front 

line of the principal structure. On any corner lot, the shed must be both behind the rear of the front 

line of the principal structure and behind the building line of the side of any structure abutting any 

street with a 2 feet setback. Utility sheds are limited to one shed per 10,000 square feet of lot area 

address. Utility sheds may be placed on the side or rear property line. The roof line has to be within 

the lot line of the property line. No water hook to the utility shed is permitted. 

 

* * * 

 

Section 3. Codification. The provisions of this Ordinance shall be included and 

incorporated into the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Melbourne Beach, as additions or 

amendments thereto. 

 

Section 4. Grandfathering. It is the intent of this Ordinance to apply prospectively. Any 

utility sheds already in existence at the time of the adoption of this Ordinance shall be deemed to 

comply with the provisions of this Ordinance. 

 

79



Section 5. Severability. Should any word, phrase, sentence, subsection, or section be held 

by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, void, unenforceable, or unconstitutional, then 

that word, phrase, sentence, subsection, or section so held shall be severed from this Ordinance 

and all other words, phrases, sentences, subsections, or sections shall remain in full force and 

effect. 

 

Section 6. Conflicting Ordinances. All ordinances or part thereof, in conflict herewith are, 

to the extent of such conflict, repealed. 

 

Section 7. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its 

passage and adoption. 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this ____ day of ________________, 2024, by the Town 

Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida. 

 

PASSED ON FIRST READING: ___________________ 

 

PASSED ON SECOND READING: ___________________ 

 

       

 

TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, FLORIDA 

 

 

      By:________________________ 

      ALISON DENNINGTON, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

      (TOWN SEAL) 

______________________ 

Amber Brown, Town Clerk 

80



1 
 

 

Business Impact Estimate 

This form should be included in the agenda packet for the item under which the proposed 
ordinance is to be considered and must be posted on the Town of Melbourne Beach website by 
the time notice of the proposed ordinance is published. 
 

ORDINANCE 2024-01 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING APPENDIX “A” OF THE TOWN CODE OF ORDINANCES OF MELBOURNE 
BEACH, THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE; AMENDING SECTION 7A-57 RELATING TO 
UTILITY SHEDS AND SETBACK REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 
This Business Impact Estimate is provided in accordance with section 166.041(4), Florida 
Statutes. If one or more boxes are checked below, this means the Town of Melbourne 
Beach is of the view that a business impact estimate is not required by state law1 for the 
proposed ordinance, but the Town of Melbourne Beach is, nevertheless, providing this 
Business Impact Estimate as a courtesy and to avoid any procedural issues that could 
impact the enactment of the proposed ordinance. This Business Impact Estimate may be 
revised following its initial posting. 

☐  The proposed ordinance is required for compliance with Federal or State law or 
regulation; 

☐  The proposed ordinance relates to the issuance or refinancing of debt; 
☐  The proposed ordinance relates to the adoption of budgets or budget 

amendments, including revenue sources necessary to fund the budget; 
☐  The proposed ordinance is required to implement a contract or an agreement, 

including, but not limited to, any Federal, State, local, or private grant or other 
financial assistance accepted by the municipal government; 

☐  The proposed ordinance is an emergency ordinance; 
☐  The ordinance relates to procurement; or 
                                                           
1 See Section 166.041(4)(c), Florida Statutes. 

81



2 
 

☐  The proposed ordinance is enacted to implement the following: 
a. Part II of Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, relating to growth policy, county and 

municipal planning, and land development regulation, including zoning, 
development orders, development agreements and development permits; 

b. Sections 190.005 and 190.046, Florida Statutes, regarding community 
development districts; 

c. Section 553.73, Florida Statutes, relating to the Florida Building Code; or 
d. Section 633.202, Florida Statutes, relating to the Florida Fire Prevention Code. 

 
In accordance with the provisions of controlling law, even notwithstanding the fact that an 
exemption noted above may apply, the Town of Melbourne Beach hereby publishes the 
following information: 
 
1. Summary of the proposed ordinance (must include a statement of the public purpose, 
such as serving the public health, safety, morals and welfare): 
 
The ordinance amends Appendix “A” the Land Development Code Section 7A-57 
accessory structures specifically utility sheds and setback requirements.  
 
 
2. An estimate of the direct economic impact of the proposed ordinance on private, for-
profit businesses in the Town of Melbourne Beach, if any: 
(a) An estimate of direct compliance costs that businesses may reasonably incur; 
(b) Any new charge or fee imposed by the proposed ordinance or for which businesses 
will be financially responsible; and 
(c) An estimate of the Town of Melbourne Beach’s regulatory costs, including estimated 
revenues from any new charges or fees to cover such costs. 
 
There are no direct compliance costs that businesses may incur, no new charges or fees 
imposed by the ordinance, and no regulatory costs to the Town. 
 
 
3. Good faith estimate of the number of businesses likely to be impacted by the proposed 
ordinance: 
 
This ordinance would be applicable to all businesses within the Town, but would have a 
negligible impact. 
 
 
4. Additional information the governing body deems useful (if any): 
 
The proposed ordinance is a generally applicable ordinance that applies to all persons 
similarly situated (individuals as well as businesses) and, therefore, the proposed 
ordinance does not affect only businesses.  
 
  

82


	Cover Page - Agenda Packet.pdf (p.1)
	240716 PnZ Agenda.pdf (p.2-3)
	240507 PNZ Draft Minutes.pdf (p.4-7)
	506 Third Ave Site Plan.pdf (p.8-61)
	0647_001
	0648_001
	0649_001
	0650_001

	Accessory Structure agenda Item Cover Page - PNZ.pdf (p.62)
	Agenda Item by Dan Harper on Landscaping and Trees Code Revisions.pdf (p.63-75)
	Item 11 C 1 Shed 1 Utility Shed Ordinance 3-2024.pdf (p.76)
	2024-01 Shed Ordinance.pdf (p.77-79)

